

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE DEPARTMENT  
OF MOTOR VEHICLES**

**LCB File No. R112-03**

September 10, 2003

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 483.220, 483.290 and 486.081; §2, NRS 483.383; §3, NRS 483.347.

**Section 1.** NAC 483.050 is hereby amended to read as follows:

483.050 1. In addition to the documents listed in subsection 2 of NRS 483.290, the documentation that the Department must accept as proof of the name and age of an applicant for a driver's license, ~~motorcycle driver's license or~~ identification card *or motorcycle driver's license* as required pursuant to NRS 483.290, 483.860 and 486.081, respectively, includes, without limitation:

- (a) ~~[A military identification card issued by the United States Government, including a military identification card issued to a dependent of military personnel;~~
- ~~(b)]~~ An original or a certified copy of one of the following documents issued by the ~~[Immigration and Naturalization Service of the United States Department of Justice:~~
- ~~(1) A Temporary Resident Card;]~~ *Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services in the Department of Homeland Security:*
  - (1) *An Alien Registration Receipt Card that is issued using Form I-551;*
  - (2) A Permit to Reenter the United States;
  - (3) A Refugee Travel Document; ~~or~~

(4) If it is accompanied by the passport of the bearer of that document, an Arrival-Departure Record ~~;~~ ~~and~~

~~—(e)] that is issued using Form I-94; or~~

*(5) A Resident Alien Card; and*

*(b) An identification card issued by another state , ~~{or}~~ the District of Columbia **or any territory of the United States** if an applicant for such an identification card is required to furnish proof of his date of birth to obtain the identification card and the Department determines that the documentation required by the other state , ~~{or}~~ the District of Columbia **or territory of the United States** is substantially similar to the documentation that an applicant is required to furnish to prove his date of birth pursuant to **this section and** NRS 483.860 . ~~[and this section.]~~*

2. The headquarters office of the Department which is located in Carson City shall maintain a list of the identification cards of other states , ~~{or}~~ the District of Columbia **or any territory of the United States** that the Department has determined are unacceptable as proof of the name and age of an applicant for a driver's license, motorcycle driver's license or identification card in this state. The headquarters office of the Department shall provide a copy of the list to:

- (a) Each branch office of the Department that provides a full range of services; and
- (b) A member of the general public upon request.

*3. The forms of identification that are unacceptable to the Department as proof of the name and age of an applicant for a driver's license, motorcycle driver's license or identification card in this state include, without limitation:*

- (a) An identification card issued by a consulate of a foreign government;*
- (b) A birth certificate issued by a foreign government; and*

*(c) A Border Crossing Card issued by the Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services in the Department of Homeland Security.*

**Sec. 2.** NAC 483.435 is hereby amended to read as follows:

483.435 1. Each application for the renewal of a driver's license by mail must:

(a) Be made upon a form furnished by the Department;

(b) Be mailed or otherwise delivered to the Department of Motor Vehicles, 555 Wright Way, Carson City, Nevada ~~[89711-0450,]~~ **89701-5224**, Attention: Supervisor of the Program for the Renewal of Drivers' Licenses By Mail;

(c) Be accompanied by the fees required pursuant to NRS 483.383;

(d) Include the full *legal* name, date of birth, driver's license number, mailing address and residential address of the applicant; and

(e) Include such other information as the Department may require.

2. At the time he applies for the renewal of his driver's license by mail, an applicant may change his mailing or residential address as it appears on his driver's license.

3. The Department will include on the application for the renewal of a driver's license by mail the opportunity for the applicant to indicate on his certificate of renewal that he wishes to be a donor of all or part of his body pursuant to NRS 451.500 to 451.590, inclusive, or that he refuses to make an anatomical gift of his body or part of his body.

**Sec. 3.** NAC 483.490 is hereby amended to read as follows:

483.490 **1.** Driving privileges must be cancelled when a license is voluntarily surrendered for the following reasons:

~~[1.]~~ **(a)** Release from liability by a person pursuant to NRS 483.310; or

~~[2.]~~ **(b)** Confidential medical reasons.

2. A person who voluntarily surrenders his license to the Department for confidential medical reasons may obtain an identification card ~~[at no charge.]~~ *upon payment of a fee in an amount that is equal to the amount of the actual cost to the Department to produce the photograph for the identification card.*